CITY, TOWN

Topeka

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

NATIONAL PARK SERVICE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

RECEIVED

MAR 3 1976

STATE

Kansas

66612

IIIN 9 / 1070

| INVENTOR | Y NOMINATION | FORM DAT | TE ENTERED CON 2 4 | 15/0 |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| SEE | INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW T | | | S |
| 1 NAME HISTORIC | Z. H. Moore Store | (preferred name) | | |
| AND/OR COMMON | Oketo Community Mus | seum | | |
| 2 LOCATIO | N | | | |
| STREET & NUMBER | Northeast corner, Sta | ate and Center Str | eets NOT FOR PUBLICATION | |
| CITY, TOWN | Oketo | _ VICINITY OF | CONGRESSIONAL DISTR No. 2, Martha Key | s |
| STATE | Kansas 66518 | CODE 20 | COUNTY Marshall | CODE 117 |
| 3 CLASSIFIC | CATION | | | |
| CATEGORY DISTRICT X_BUILDING(S) STRUCTURE SITE OBJECT | OWNERSHIP PUBLIC XPRIVATEBOTH PUBLIC ACQUISITIONIN PROCESSBEING CONSIDERED | STATUS XOCCUPIED LUNOCCUPIED WORK IN PROGRESS ACCESSIBLE YES: RESTRICTED YES: UNRESTRICTED NO | PRES AGRICULTURECOMMERCIALEDUCATIONALENTERTAINMENTGOVERNMENTINDUSTRIALMILITARY | ENT USE X_MUSEUM PARK PRIVATE RESIDENCE RELIGIOUS SCIENTIFIC TRANSPORTATION X_OTHER Lodge H |
| NAME | PEROPERTY eto Lodge No. 25 A. F. | . & A. M. | | |
| CITY, TOWN | eto | VICINITY OF | STATE Kan | sas 66518 |
| 5 LOCATION COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS | N OF LEGAL DESCR S,ETC. Register of I | | | |
| STREET & NUMBER | Marshall County (| | | |
| CITY, TOWN | Marysville | our thouse | STATE Kan | sas 66508 |
| TITLE | NTATION IN EXIST | ING SURVEYS | | |
| DATE Ju | ne 7, 1971 | FEDERAL : | X _{STATE} _COUNTY _LOCAL | - |
| DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS | Kanses State Histori | ical Society | | |

_XFAIR

CONDITION

__UNALTERED

CHECK ONE

__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED
__GOOD __RUINS

__UNEXPOSED

S X_ALTERED

X_ORIGINAL SITE

__MOVED DATE_____

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Z. H. Moore Store in Oketo is two stories high with a basement and constructed from native stone taken from a quarry on the edge of town. It is located at the west end of Oketo's one block commercial district, a district in which only a few commercial establishments still remain. The building measures 70 feet long by 26.5 feet wide and is 26.5 feet high. The main entrance, which fronts on Center street, faces south and has been constructed of dressed stone with a store front facade. A heavy wood lintel and two stone piers support the stone on the second story. The first story has two large plate glass cross windows and a recessed double door and transom window. A wood base with recessed panels runs along the bottom of the windows. The store front is supported on a stone base. There are two windows on this main facade on the second story which have slightly protruding stone sills. A narrow band of stone which protrudes slightly from the facade serves as the cornice.

The east and west facades are constructed of rubble masonry and each has five windows on the second story. These windows have dressed stone lintels and sills. The cornice line lowers in four steps. The east facade has two windows with dressed stone lintels and sills on the first story. The west facade has two doors and a window on the first story. The one story lean-to brick building on the west is not part of the Moore building. There are two small brick chimneys visible behind the masonry wall on the west side and one on the east.

The north facade is also constructed of rubble masonry. There is one doorway with a dressed stone lintel, and a gutter runs along the cornice with a downspout on the west side.

The roof is flat and covered with tar paper.

The second floor continues to serve as a lodge hall and the first floor is the community museum. The original post office equipment remains in the building.

One of the few discernible alterations to the structure is the change in the first floor window openings on the east facade. Originally the window below the middle second story window did not exist. It does not have the one-piece dressed stone lintel that the others do. The second window was original, and another original window opening below or slightly north of the last second story window has been walled up. An old photograph shows a sloping porch roof across the south facade, but this was removed many years ago.

PERIOD

| SPECIFIC DAT | ES 1876 | BUILDER/ARCH | HITECT | | |
|--------------------------|---|---|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|--|
| X_1800-1899 1900- | X.COMMERCE COMMUNICATIONS | EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT INDUSTRY INVENTION | PHILOSOPHY POLITICS/GOVERNMENT | TRANSPORTATIONOTHER (SPECIFY) | |
| 1600-1699 1700-1799 | ARCHITECTURE | EDUCATION ENGINEERING | MILITARY MUSIC | SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN THEATER | |
| 1500-1599 | AGRICULTURE | ECONOMICS | LITERATURE | SCULPTURE | |
| PREHISTORIC 1400-1499 | ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORICARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC | COMMUNITY PLANNINGCONSERVATION | LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURELAW | RELIGION SCIENCE | |
| PERIOD | AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW | | | | |

A DEAC OF CICNIEICANCE CHECK AND INSTITUTE OF

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Z. H. Moore store was the first business building in Oketo. Built in 1876 of native limestone quarried at Oketo, it served the community as post office and general store for many years.

Ziba H. Moore, a native of Pennsylvania, was a carpenter by trade. For a number of years he worked for the federal government on the Otoe Indian reservation at what is now Barneston, Nebraska. In 1875 Moore moved to Oketo, which is located on the Big Blue river in northern Marshall county and opened a general store. A settlement had originally developed about a mile south of the present town. Then in 1866 Irving Chapman built a dam across the Big Blue and erected a flour mill; subsequently a new village grew up at that location.

Moore is said to have built the first house, the first store, and dug the first well at Oketo. He was the town's second postmaster, serving from January 10, 1882, to January 6, 1886. He continued to operate the general store through the 1880's, and was probably involved in other business ventures, such as stone quarries. Then in 1889 he organized the Oketo State Bank as a private bank. In 1899 it was converted to a state bank with Z. H. Moore as the casheer. He remained actively associated with the bank until his death September 16, 1916, at which time he was president.

The Z. H. Moore Store building was used as a dry goods and general store for many years and as the community's post office until the early 1970's. The Oketo Masonic lodge has used the second floor as a lodge hall for more than 70 years. The building is significant to the local community for its long usage as the post office and as a general store, and it was the first commercial structure built at the present site of Oketo.

| 9 MAJOR BI | BLIOGRAPHIC | AL REFERE | ENCES | | | |
|----------------------|--|------------------|--------------------|--|-------------------------|---|
| | Frank, editor, Kan | | | | Chicago, | |
| | dard Publishing Co | • | , <u>-</u> | | | |
| | mma E., <u>History of</u> | | | napolis, Ind., | B. F. Bowen | |
| | Co., 1917), pp. 179 zetteers, 1882-191 | | 4 14 . | | | |
| | County Historical | | ankfort Inde | ex. Oct. 19. 1 | 972. | |
| | obuilty intocorrect . | , 11 | <u> </u> | <u></u> , ••••• <u>-</u> , - | .5.7 = 4 | |
| 10 GEOGRAP | HICAL DATA | | | | | - |
| | | one | | | | |
| UTM REFERENCES | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | 6 2 9 0 | В | <u> </u> | 11111 | |
| ZONE EAS | TING NORTHIN | G I | ZONE EA | ASTING, N | ORTHING | |
| | DARY DESCRIPTION | | | <u> </u> | | _ |
| VENDAL BOOK | DANT DESCRIPTION | | | | | |
| | 2.17 | res sant s s | i | aptitute in lateration | | |
| | | | | en e | ٠, | |
| | | | | 0 | | |
| | | | | | | |
| LIST ALL | STATES AND COUNTIES I | OR PROPERTIES | OVERLAPPING | STATE OR COUNTY | BOUNDARIES | - |
| STATE | | CODE | COLINEY | | CODE | |
| SIAIE | | CODE | COUNTY | | CODE | |
| STATE | | CODE | COUNTY | | CODE | - |
| | | | | | · | _ |
| 11 FORM PRI | EPARED BY | | | | | |
| NAME / TITLE | Richard Pankratz | , Director, | Historic S: | ites Survey | | |
| | Cornelia Wyma, | Architect | ural Histor | ian | | |
| ORGANIZATION | Warran Chaha War | | - 4 | DATE | 00 1076 | |
| STREET & NUMBER | Kansas State His | corical Socie | ety | J a TELEPHON | nuary 23, 1976 | _ |
| Officer & Howsell | 120 West 10th St | reet | | | 296-3251 | |
| CITY OR TOWN | | | | STATE | | _ |
| | Topeka | | | | Kansas 66612 | |
| 12 STATE HI | STORIC PRESER | RVATION | OFFICER (| CERTIFICA' | TION | |
| | THE EVALUATED SIGN | | | | | |
| NATI | ONAL | STATE_ | | LOCAL _x | • | |
| | | | | | | |
| - | tate Historic Preservation O | | | | | _ |
| | is property for inclusion in res set forth by the Nationa | | ster and certify t | hat it has been eva | luated according to the | |
| criteria and procedu | res set forth by the Nationa | raik Service. | | > -4 | | |
| STATE HISTORIC PR | ESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATU | JRE N | yle H. | miller | | |
| TITLE Execut | tive Director, Kans | sas State His | Storical Soc | ciety DATE | January 30, 1976 | |
| OR NPS USE ONLY | , | 1 | | | | |
| I HEREBY CERTII | TY THAT THIS PROPERTY | E NCTODED IN | THE NATIONAL I | REGISTER | .[/ | |
| ating | 1/1 | 1/1/2 # | 7 | DATE | Chalse | |
| | | | | | | |
| | CE OF ARCHEOLOGY AND | HISTORIC PRES | PAVATION | | -9-7/00 | |
| DIRECTOR, OFFI | CE OF ARCHEOLOGY AND NATIONAL REGISTER | HISTORIC PRES | PAVATION | DATE | 4-F104 | |

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

FOR NPS USE ONLY

RECEIVED MAR 3 1976

JUN 2 4 1976

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Z. H. Moore Store

CONTINUATION SHEET

ITEM NUMBER

PAGE

9.

Official Atlas of Kansas (Philadelphia, L. H. Everts and Co., 1887), opp. p. 126.

"Oketo Community Museum Now Open," Marysville Advocate, June 29, 1972.

Oketo Was Early Stopping Place for Many Emigrants," Marysville Advocate, August 12, 1954.

Oketo Was Named After an Indian Arkeketak," Marshall County News (Marysville), February 27, 1931.

Portrait and Biographical Album of Marshall County, Kansas (Chicago, Chapman Bros., 1899), pp. 294-296.

Post Office Records, Archives Division, Kansas State Historical Society.